
JEA
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITTEE AGENDA

DATE: August 10, 2015

TIME: 10:00 AM

PLACE: 21 W. Church Street
8th Floor, Board Conference Room

Committee Members will meet in the 8th Floor Board Conference Room
Other Board Members may join via conference call
Phone Number: 904-665-7100

Responsible 
Person

Action (A)
Info ( I )

Total 
Time

I. OPENING CONSIDERATIONS Husein Cumber

A. Call to Order

B. Adoption of Agenda A

C. Approval of Committee Meeting Minutes May 19, 2015 A

II. NEW BUSINESS

A. Update on Clean Power Plan
Jay Worley/
Nancy Kilgo

I 20 mins.

B. State Water Supply Planning Paul Steinbrecher I 15 mins.

C. Other Business Paul McElroy I 5 mins.

D. Announcements Husein Cumber I

1. Schedule Next Meeting as Appropriate

E. Adjournment

Committee Members will meet in the 
8th Floor Board Conference Room
Other Board Members may join via conference call 
by dialing 904-665-7100 - No password is needed.  

Environmental Committee - I. B. Agenda

1



JEA EPA COMMITTEE MINUTES
May 19, 2015

The EPA Committee of JEA met on Wednesday, May 19, 2015, in the 8th Floor Conference Room, JEA 
Plaza Tower, 21 W. Church Street, Jacksonville, Florida.

Agenda Item I – Opening Considerations 

A. Call to Order – Committee Chair Husein Cumber called the meeting to order at 11:17 AM with 
Member Wyman Winbush in attendance.  Lisa Weatherby participated telephonically. Present 
were Paul McElroy, Bud Para, Mike Brost, Melissa Dykes, Nancy Kilgo, Paul Steinbrecher, 
Steve McInall, Judi Spann, Gerri Boyce, and Tom Larson, Sierra Club.  

B. Adoption of Agenda – The Agenda was adopted on motion by Mr. Winbush and second by Ms.
Weatherby.

C. Approval of Minutes – The February 11, 2015 Minutes were unanimously approved on motion
by Ms. Weatherby and second by Mr. Winbush.

Agenda Item II – New Business

A. Update on EPA’s Proposed Clean Power Plan (CPP) – Bud Para, Chief Public Affairs Officer, 
provided an update on the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) proposed Clean Power Plan
for Existing Plants 111(d).  Mr. Para stated the final rulings on 111(b) for new units and 111(d) 
for existing units are anticipated to be sent to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for 
interagency review.  The OMB will have 90 days for review of this ruling.  At the time the final 
CPP is published, the EPA will also publish a Federal Plan.  States will then have one year, with a 
possible one year extension, to submit a State Plan.  If the State Plan is not acceptable, or if one is 
not submitted, the EPA will impose the Federal Plan.  If a Federal Plan is imposed, the State 
could still submit a State Plan at a later date. 

The proposed CPP would require significant compliance by 2020.  The EPA may loosen this 
date, but the final 2030 compliance date is expected to remain firm. Mr. Para stated JEA will 
work with the EPA, Florida Public Service Commission, Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection (FDEP), and the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services.  On April 22, 
2015, he, along with Paul McElroy, and Nancy Kilgo, Director Government Affairs, met with 
FDEP Secretary Steverson and Paula Cobb, Deputy Secretary for Regulatory Programs, regarding 
the CPP.  A second meeting with Deputy Secretary Cobb is scheduled to be held June 30, 2015.  
Deputy Secretary Cobb will be leading the FDEP effort to develop the State Plan.

Mr. Para stated West Virginia Senator Shelley Moore Capito introduced the “Affordable Reliable 
Electricity Now Act of 2015”.  If passed, this legislation would restrict the ability of the EPA to 
issue greenhouse gas regulations for new and existing fossil fuel-fired power plants.  A copy of 
the press release is on file. 

B. Community Engagement Process – Mr. Para introduced Mr. Tom Larson, member of the Sierra 
Club Northeast Florida Group.  Mr. Larson has been among the stakeholders meeting with JEA 
since 2001 regarding emissions from power plants.  The stakeholder group is providing input to 
JEA staff on how to engage the Jacksonville community on JEA’s options and on the CPP.  Mr. 
Para has also contacted Austin Energy and the Omaha Public Power District to learn how they 
conducted recent community engagement efforts. On September 25, 2014, JEA hosted a 
community meeting to educate its customers and regional policymakers about the EPA’s
proposed CPP.  Mr. Para stated that JEA plans to conduct a similar meeting this fall to discuss the 
final CPP rule.  JEA will also reach out to community groups, civic organizations, and churches 
to offer education and to solicit community feedback.  Mr. Para will request feedback and input 

Environmental Committee - I. C. Minutes

2



EPA Committee May 19, 2015 Page - 2

from the Board regarding a hosting a second symposium.  Once the final CPP is published, JEA 
will send out a communication to past symposium attendees.

C. Florida Water Policy Update – Mr. Para stated Governor Rick Scott recently named Jon 
Steverson as the new Secretary of the FDEP.  Ann Shorstein was named the new Executive 
Director of the St. Johns River Water Management District, and there is a current opening for the 
Executive Director of the Suwanee River Water Management District.  Mr. Para provided an 
overview of the EPA’s proposed Clean Water Rule. 

D. Other Business

1. Revise Committee Name and Charter – Committee Chair Cumber stated the Committee was 
formed approximately one year ago, but did not have a Charter in place.  Mr. McElroy 
presented the draft charter which has been provided to the Committee for review.  The draft 
charter includes: a revision to the committee name to the Environmental Committee, which 
will broaden the scope of the Committee to incorporate Water and Wastewater; states the 
Committee will meet at least twice a year; will consist of least three Board Members, and 
defines the role of the Committee.  On motion by Ms. Weatherby and second by Mr. 
Winbush, the Committee unanimously approved the Environmental Committee Charter.

E. Announcements

1. The next EPA Committee Meeting will be scheduled after receiving the benefit of 
information and discussion at the American Public Power Association (APPA) National 
Conference.

F. Adjournment – With no further business claiming the attention of this Committee, the meeting 
was declared adjourned at 11:45 AM.

APPROVED BY:

_________________________________
Husein Cumber, Committee Chair
Date:  ________________

Submitted by:

___________________________________
Melissa Charleroy
Executive Assistant

Environmental Committee - I. C. Minutes

3



Clean Power Plan Update

JEA Board Environmental Committee 
8/10/15
Jay Worley / Nancy Kilgo

Environmental Committee - II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan

4



Clean Power Plan 

2

ß Reduction of carbon emissions from the electric sector
ß Proposed rule published on June 2, 2014
ß EPA received 4.3 million comments 
ß Final pre-publication rule released on August 3, 2015

ß Publication in Federal Register anticipated in September 2015
ß State Plan to be developed by Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection (FDEP) {assumption to be ratified by Legislature}

ß Early review of final rule indicates some “relief”  from 
requirements from the proposed rule 

ß JEA subject matter experts, associated utility organizations, 
legal counsel, etc. continue to review and analyze for 
interpretation of impacts and opportunities

ß Anticipation of litigation upon final rule publication 

Environmental Committee - II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan

5



3

Building Community

Generation Development

1975      1980      1985      1990      1995      2000      2005      2010      2015      2020      2025

Summer Capacity listed;  *NS3 capable of dual fuel – Natural Gas and Residual Oil

Solid Fuel

Natural Gas
Landfill Gas

Nuclear

Solar

Diversification  - Solid Fuel
Trend to clean technologies
- Natural Gas
- Clean Coal
- Renewables
- Nuclear

Environmental Committee - II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan

6



Clean Power Plan:  Proposed vs. Final 

4

Proposed Final
Nationally, a 30 percent reduction of 
CO2 emissions from 2005 levels from existing 
fossil fuel power plants by 2030.

Nationally, a 32 percent reduction of 
CO2 emissions from 2005 levels from existing 
fossil fuel power plants by 2030.

Florida - A final goal of 740 lbs CO2/MWh by 
2030. 
Florida - Interim emission reduction goal of 794 
lbs CO2/MWh between 2020 – 2029

Florida - A final goal of 919 lbs CO2/MWh by 
2030.  
Florida - Step change reductions, through a 
phased in gradual  “glide path” commencing in 
2020 to 2030. 

Establishment of mass targets.

State goal was in the form of an average rate in 
lb CO2/MWh. Flexibility to convert the rate-
based goal into a mass-based goal using a 
methodology determined by the state.

State can elect a goal in one of 3 forms: (1) A 
rate-based goal measured in lb CO2/MWh; (2) a 
statewide goal mass emissions goal of only 
existing affected EGUs within the state, 
measured in tons of CO2; and (3) a mass-based 
state goal, measured in tons of CO2, which 
includes emissions from both existing and new 
affected EGUs.

Environmental Committee - II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan

7



Clean Power Plan:  The Building Blocks

5

Proposed Final
Block 1 - Improve heat rate of coal-fired 
power plants. National 6% average 
improvement applied in 2020

Florida - 4.3% average improvement 
applied in 2022

Block 2 - Increase generation from natural 
gas combined cycle. 70% of gross capacity 
beginning in 2020.  Re-dispatch w/n State.

Phased in from 68% to 75% of net summer 
capacity from 2022 to 2024.
Re-dispatch w/n eastern interconnect.

Block 3 - Increase clean generation. State-
specific based on current state renewable 
requirements and inclusion of 5.8% of 
existing nuclear + nuclear under 
construction

By national region - Renewable energy 
based on historic deployment & technical
potential – phased in from 2022 to 2029

No nuclear component

Block 4 - Increase end-use energy 
efficiency. State specific growing 1.5% per 
year

Not Included – However, energy efficiency 
can be used for compliance within the 
State Plan

Environmental Committee - II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan

8



Clean Power Plan - Summary

6

ß Two year extension to 2022 to commence reductions 
ß Florida final goal was increased from 740 lbs CO2/MWh to 919 lbs CO2/MWh

ß Interim goals, through step change reductions, commencing in 2020 to 2030 providing 
more flexibility to leverage existing assets and provide fuel diversity

ß Movement toward a mass-based (tons) goal vs. rate (lbs/MWh) goal
ß Assists in addressing intrastate and interstate generation 

ß Assists in addressing possible trading opportunities

ß Assists in addressing disparate treatment within the State and between States

ß Allows nuclear units under construction to be included toward goal compliance
ß A more aggressive renewable goal
ß Allows specific approved energy efficiency programs to be included toward goal 
ß Development of the State Plan by the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection will be critical to determine final compliance requirements
ß JEA to interface closely with FDEP and with State utility companies and organizations 

to promote a fair and equitable plan throughout the State.

Environmental Committee - II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan

9



 

 1 

EPA Issues Regulations to Control Carbon 
Dioxide Emissions from the Power Sector 
 
AUGUST 5, 2015 
Kyle Danish, Stephen Fotis, Van Smith, and Avi Zevin 

On August 3, 2015, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) issued a suite of rules regulating the 
emission of carbon dioxide (CO2) from new, modified and reconstructed, and existing fossil fuel-fired 
electric generating units (EGUs) under section 111 of the Clean Air Act (CAA or Act).   

This suite of rules includes (1) a final rule under section 111(b) of the CAA setting emission standards for 
new EGUs, set based on the “partial” application of carbon capture and sequestration (CCS) for coal-fired 
EGUs; (2) in the same rule, emission standards for modified and reconstructed EGUs, which are not 
based on CCS for coal-fired EGUs; and (3) the final “Clean Power Plan,” a rule under section 111(d) of the 
Act that establishes state-by-state CO2 emission reduction “goals” starting in 2022 and directs each state 
to submit for EPA approval a plan demonstrating how the state’s affected EGUs will meet its reduction 
goals.  In addition, EPA released a proposed federal plan, which would establish unit-by-unit emission 
reduction obligations for affected EGUs in a state that did not submit an approvable state plan.  The 
proposed federal plan also includes presumptively approvable model trading frameworks for states 
submitting their own plans.  The pre-Federal Register versions of these rules run to over 3,000 pages, and 
EPA has issued hundreds of pages of supporting Technical Support Documents. 

While many features of the final rules have changed since they were proposed, the overall structure 
remains largely the same.  Overall, EPA projects that the suite of rules will result in power sector 
emission reductions of 32 percent from 2005 levels by the year 2030.  In a White House speech on August 
3, President Obama emphasized that these rules build on previous U.S. climate policies, and are 
consistent with the targets his Administration has set as part of the international climate talks.   

This alert briefly outlines the various final and proposed power sector rules, highlights some key changes 
from the proposals, and identifies next steps.  Van Ness Feldman will be preparing a more in-depth 
analysis.  Please contact Stephen Fotis, Kyle Danish, or anyone else in the climate change or 
environmental practices if you are interested in such analysis.   

Final Clean Power Plan  

Background on Section 111(d) 

Section 111(d) of the CAA directs EPA to promulgate regulations establishing a federal-state process for 
setting standards of performance limiting emissions from existing sources for pollutants not otherwise 
regulated in other specified sections of the Act.  Under this process, EPA develops performance 
standards, states are to submit plans to EPA to meet these standards, and EPA then approves or 
disapproves the state plans.  EPA has used this section in only a handful of rules over the forty-plus year 
history of section 111, and there is almost no case law interpreting EPA’s authorities under section 111.  In 
the previous rules under section 111(d), EPA has issued a “guideline document” establishing emission 
reduction targets and compliance deadlines for states, and has required states to implement compliance 
plans that ensure that the regulated sources meet those targets.  The Clean Power Plan includes such a 
guideline, along with a requirement that states submit plans to achieve compliance with the guideline.   

Emission Guideline:  Source-specific CO2 Performance Rates with a State-By State Emission Goal Option 

As under the proposed rule, the final Clean Power Plan sets state-specific CO2 emission goals to reduce 
statewide emissions from the power sector.  These goals consist of an Interim Goal, which must be met 
on average during the years of 2022-2029, and a Final Goal for 2030 and beyond.  In a significant change 
from the proposed rule, EPA has shifted the compliance start date from 2020 to 2022.   

 

 

Environmental Committee - II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan

10

http://www.vnf.com/kdanish
http://www.vnf.com/sfotis
http://www.vnf.com/azevin
http://www.epa.gov/airquality/cpp/cps-final-rule.pdf
http://www.epa.gov/airquality/cpp/cpp-final-rule.pdf
http://www.epa.gov/airquality/cpp/cpp-proposed-federal-plan.pdf
http://www.vnf.com/2929
http://www.epa.gov/airquality/cpp/cpp-final-rule.pdf


 

 2 

EPA projects that the implementation of these goals, averaged nationally, will result in a 32 percent 
reduction of CO2 emissions from 2005 levels from existing fossil fuel power plants by 2030.   

Form of State Goal.  In the proposed rule, each state’s goal was in the form of an average rate of 
emissions per net MWh of electricity generated by the electric power sector within the state.  The 
proposed rule then gave states the flexibility to convert the rate-based goal into a mass-based goal using 
a methodology determined by the state.  In the final Clean Power Plan, EPA specifically set state goals in 
three forms, which it deems equivalent: (1) A rate-based goal measured in pounds of CO2 per megawatt 
hour (lb CO2/MWh) of generation by the electric power sector; (2) a statewide goal covering the mass 
emissions of only existing affected EGUs within the state, measured in tons of CO2; and (3) a mass-based 
state goal, measured in tons of CO2, which includes emissions from both existing and new affected 
EGUs.  States may choose which goal to use when designing and submitting their plans. 

Basis for Setting State-by-State Goals.   EPA’s calculation of state goals in the final Clean Power Plan 
has changed significantly from the proposed rule.  EPA established each state goal by determining a 
national “best system of emission reduction” (BSER) for EGUs in each of two EGU source categories: 
coal- and oil/gas-fired steam generating units (fossil steam) and base load natural gas-fired stationary 
combustion units for each year.  EPA continues to rely, in part, on an interpretation of the term “system” 
that assumes action from measures occurring outside the regulated plant that reduce emissions at the 
plant.  Specifically, EPA relied on three “building blocks” that constitute BSER at EGUs: 

• Block 1, improving the average efficiency (or “heat rate”) of coal-fired steam EGUs.  The proposed 
rule assumed coal plants can, on average, improve heat rates by 6% by 2020.  The final rule sets an 
expected level of heat rate improvement ranging from 2.1% to 4.3% based on the geographic location 
of facilities. 

• Block 2, displacing fossil steam generation by increasing generation from existing natural gas 
combined cycle (NGCC) facilities.  The proposed rule assumed that this redispatch could occur by 
2020, that all NGCC facilities in a state could be operated at up to 70% of the unit’s nameplate 
capacity, and that such increased utilization would reduce generation of higher emitting EGUs in the 
state.  The final rule determines the amount of redispatch from fossil steam EGUs in each 
interconnected electric grid (Eastern Interconnect, Western Interconnect, and ERCOT) to 
underutilized existing NGCC EGUs in that region by assuming NGCC units can operate at up to 75% of 
net summer capacity. 

• Block 3, reducing fossil fuel-fired generation through increased zero-carbon generation.  The 
proposed rule assumed that (1) each of the three nuclear facilities under construction in May 2014 
could be completed, (2) the 5.8% of nuclear capacity deemed “at-risk” could be maintained, and (3) 
non-hydroelectric renewable facilities could generate electricity in each state consistent with state 
renewable portfolio standard (RPS) policies in place in the state’s region.  The final rule does not 
include either nuclear component in building block 3, does not count existing renewable generation or 
achievable new distributed solar generation (e.g., solar rooftop) or generation from biomass, and 
replaces the RPS metric with a metric based on regional technical potential for incremental renewable 
generation.  The result is that the final rule significantly expands assumed renewable generation and 
the stringency of block 3.  

Unlike in the proposed Clean Power Plan, EPA has not assumed that end-use energy efficiency that 
reduces demand from EGUs is part of BSER (previously Building Block 4).  However, EPA continues to 
emphasize that energy efficiency is a compliance option that may be incorporated into state plans, and 
the agency predicts substantial use of energy efficiency measures. 

EPA applies the building blocks to the EGUs in each interconnected electric grid region and, by phasing-
them in over time, arrives at separate Interim and Final emission rates for fossil steam EGUs and base 
load stationary combustion EGUs in each region.  EPA then sets the national emission rate limit for each 
EGU type by taking the least stringent of the regional limits.  Finally, to arrive at state-by-state emission 

Environmental Committee - II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan

11



 

 3 

rate goals, EPA applies these national emission rates to the fleet of affected EGUs in each state as of 
2012, with some adjustments.  As such, differences among the various state goals in the final rule are far 
less pronounced than the goals under the proposed rule – with the differences in the final rule driven 
entirely by the distribution of existing fossil steam versus existing base load stationary combustion units 
in a state in 2012.  EPA also converted each state’s emission rate goals into two mass-based goals: one 
taking into account only existing units, and one taking into account existing and new units.   

EPA also set emission performance standards for areas of Indian Country with affected EGUs.  However, 
the agency declared that it still needs additional information for the states of Alaska and Hawaii and the 
territories of Guam and Puerto Rico, implying that those jurisdictions will have a different compliance 
schedule if and when EPA finalizes guidelines for them. 

State Compliance Plans 

As with many other CAA regulatory programs, section 111(d) gives states the primary responsibility to 
implement the reduction obligations through the adoption of state plans that limit emissions at 
regulated facilities.  The Clean Power Plan requires states to make initial plan submissions by September 
6, 2016; however, unlike in the proposed rule, EPA will grant a state an extension for as many as two 
years provided that its initial submission meets certain specified criteria for progress and consultation.  
Accordingly, final plan submissions must be made by September 2018, an extension of two years from 
the proposed rule. 

EPA continues to emphasize the flexibility it has provided states for developing plans to meet the 
Interim and Final Goals.  The Clean Power Plan offers states at least three forms of flexibility: flexibility in 
the means of compliance, flexibility in timing, and flexibility in the form of the compliance obligation.  In 
addition, EPA has outlined a Clean Energy Incentive Program to encourage early emission reductions in 
2020 and 2021 prior to the start of the program in 2022.  In addition, in the proposed Federal Plan rule, 
EPA has proposed different kinds of model trading rules for flexible implementation that states may 
adopt in part or in whole for their own plans. 

Means of compliance.  The final Clean Power Plan identifies two types of state plans.  States may adopt 
an “emission standards plan,” which includes source-specific emission limits (rate or mass) for all existing 
affected EGUs within the state that, collectively, ensure that the state’s affected EGUs will reach the 
state’s Interim and Final Goals.  These rates are based on the national emission rates for fossil steam and 
base load stationary combustion EGUs that were used to set state goals.  State plans adopting an 
emission-standards plan may include a cap-and-trade program or a rate-based trading program that 
takes into account low- and zero-carbon generation and energy savings from end-use efficiency actions.  
EPA has established guidance to encourage such plans to be “trading ready” so that they can take 
advantage of emission reduction opportunities in other states.   

Alternatively, states may adopt a “State measures plan,” which may include a mix of federally-
enforceable EGU emission limits and non-federally enforceable additional measures – such as state 
renewable energy or energy efficiency standards – that reduce emissions from EGUs.  State measures 
plans may only be used with mass-based goals and must include “backstop” federally enforceable 
standards for EGUs that will kick in if the state measures fail to achieve the expected level of emission 
reductions.  This is similar, though not identical, to the “portfolio approach” option included in the 
proposed Clean Power Plan.   

In either case, states are not limited to the emission reduction measures covered in the three “building 
blocks.”   States may design plans that take advantage of end-use energy efficiency, new and uprated 
nuclear generation, biomass generation, and a host of other measures not incorporated into the state 
goal-setting methodology, provided those measures reduce emissions at the affected EGUs. 

Compliance timing.  Regardless of what measures they use for compliance, state plans must ensure that 
the state’s power sector meets the Interim Goals, on average, over the 2022-2029 period, and a more 
stringent Final Goal by 2030 (averaged over a 3-year period).  However, EPA proposes to allow states to 

Environmental Committee - II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan

12



 

 4 

determine when and how quickly individual EGUs in the state must reduce their emissions.  EPA requires 
states to demonstrate that they are making progress towards meeting the Interim Goal by 2029.  A 
state’s plans must set milestones that show it will meet the Interim and Final goals over time.  EPA 
allows states to demonstrate progress either through multi-year “step down” goals or through a state-
determined “glide-path” approach.   

Form of the compliance obligation.  The Final Clean Power Plan gives states the option to choose among 
rate-based targets and mass-based targets, and (for states that choose a mass-based target) whether to 
include new fossil fuel-fired units under the target.  In addition, the final rule allows multiple states to 
work together to achieve reductions (as is occurring in the Northeast with the Regional Greenhouse Gas 
Initiative).  

Clean Energy Incentive Program.  The final rule establishes a Clean Energy Incentive Program, under 
which states may issue tradeable rate credits (or, for a mass-based plan, emission allowances) to certain 
renewable energy and demand-side energy efficiency activities that are commenced after submission of 
state plans and before 2022.  EPA will then issue matching credits or allowances for those activities.  For 
renewable energy, only wind and solar projects are eligible.  For energy efficiency, only activities 
implemented in low-income communities are eligible.  Activities can earn federal matching credits from 
EPA for MWh generated (in the case of renewable energy projects) or saved (in the case of energy 
efficiency activities) in 2020 or 2021.  The final rule states that EPA will address further implementation 
details for the program in a subsequent action.  This Program is intended to incentivize early renewable 
energy and energy efficiency development, and therefore emission reductions, without undermining 
emission reductions obligations during the 2022-2029 compliance period. 

Reliability Assurance.  Reacting to significant public comment, EPA has adopted a number of changes 
aimed at addressing reliability concerns.  This includes (1) moving the compliance start date from 2020 
to 2022; (2) a new requirement that each state plan demonstrate that it has considered reliability, 
including consultation with the appropriate reliability entity; (3) a way for a state to revise its plan in the 
face of unanticipated reliability challenges; (4) a temporary “safety-valve” for individual EGUs when 
Clean Power Plan requirements conflict with reliability obligations; and (5) an agreement between EPA, 
the Department of Energy, and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission to coordinate and monitor 
implementation of the rule in order to ensure reliability. 

Proposed Federal Plan 

EPA also issued a proposed “Federal Plan” rule.  Under section 111(d) of the CAA, EPA is authorized to 
impose a federal plan for a state that fails to submit an approvable state plan.  In its proposed rule, EPA 
explains that it is setting forth the Federal Plan in advance of the deadline for submission of state plans 
not only to provide regulatory certainty about the rules that will apply in states that fail to submit 
approvable plans, but also to provide models for states to use in developing their own plans.  Indeed, 
EPA makes clear that a state may voluntarily adopt the Federal Plan in whole or in part as its state plan.   

The proposed Federal Plan would apply emission reduction obligations directly on affected EGUs.  The 
agency has proposed two different approaches for consideration for the Federal Plan: a rate-based 
program and a mass-based program.  EPA explains that it intends to finalize only one of those 
approaches for the Federal Plan.  However, the proposed rule also offers both pathways (with some 
variations) as available models for states to use – and to presume approvable – in their own plans.  In 
total, therefore, the proposed rule outlines four actions: (1) a rate-based Federal Plan; (2) a mass-based 
Federal Plan; (3) a rate-based model trading rule for potential use by any state; and (4) a mass-based 
model trading rule for potential use by any state.   

Final Emission Standards for New, Modified, and Reconstructed EGUs  
In addition to the final Clean Power Plan, EPA released a final rule setting carbon dioxide emission 
standards for new, modified, and reconstructed fossil fuel-fired EGUs (which it terms the “Carbon 
Pollution Standards” rule). 

Environmental Committee - II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan

13

http://www.ferc.gov/media/headlines/2015/CPP-EPA-DOE-FERC.pdf
http://www.epa.gov/airquality/cpp/cpp-proposed-federal-plan.pdf


 

 5 

Background 

Section 111(b) of the CAA requires EPA to establish new source performance standards (NSPS) for any 
category of stationary sources that “contributes significantly” to air pollution that endangers public 
health or welfare.  NSPS established under this section apply only to sources that are new, modified or 
reconstructed.   

New Source Proposal. In September 2013, EPA issued a proposal to set CO2 emission standards for new 
fossil steam EGUs and certain stationary combustion turbines (New Source Proposal).  In the New 
Source Proposal, EPA proposed to require that new fossil steam EGUs meet an emission limit of 1,100 lb 
CO2/MWh – a level that effectively would require the units to install carbon capture and storage (CCS) 
technology to capture at least 40% of CO2 emissions (termed “partial CCS”).  EPA also proposed to 
require that base load natural gas-fired stationary combustion units meet an emission limit of either 
1,000 lb or 1,100 lb CO2/MWh (depending on the size of the unit) based on modern, efficient NGCC 
technology as BSER.   

Modified Source Proposal. In June 2014, EPA issued a related proposal to set CO2 emission standards for 
modified and reconstructed fossil fuel-fired EGUs (Modified Source Proposal).  In the Modified Source 
Proposal, EPA proposed to subject modified fossil steam EGUs to a unit-specific emission standard 
equivalent to the EGU’s best demonstrated historical performance since 2002 with an additional 2 
percent emission reduction, and additionally proposed to subject fossil steam EGUs modified after 
becoming subject to a 111(d) plan to a unit-specific emission limit set by the state or other relevant 111(d) 
implementing authority.  For reconstructed fossil steam EGUs, EPA proposed an emission standard 
based on the most efficient generation technology available at the EGU, which EPA determined 
corresponded to an average emission limit of either 1,900 or 2,100 lbs CO2/MWh (net), depending on the 
size of the unit.  For natural gas turbines, EPA proposed to require both modified and reconstructed base 
load turbines to meet the same emission limits EPA proposed for new natural gas turbines: either 1,000 
or 1,100 lbs CO2/MWh, depending on the size of the unit. 

Final Standards for New, Modified, and Reconstructed EGUs 

In the final Carbon Pollution Standards rule, EPA combined its New and Modified Proposals into one 
rulemaking and made several changes to key elements of these proposals.  EPA set emission standards 
for new fossil steam EGUs at 1,400 lb/CO2/MWh – a level less stringent than in the New Source Proposal 
– based on the use of supercritical pulverized coal technology and partial CCS.  According to EPA, the 
new standard can be met by a supercritical utility boiler burning bituminous coal and capturing 16% of 
CO2 (or 23% if burning subbituminous or dried lignite).  EPA also outlines an “alternative compliance 
option” under which new EGUs can meet the standard without CCS by co-firing approximately 40% 
natural gas.   

For reconstructed fossil steam EGUs, EPA adopted a final emission standard of either 1,800 or 2,000 lbs 
CO2/MWh, depending on the size of the unit, which EPA based on the most efficient generation 
technology at the EGU.  For modified fossil steam EGUs, EPA adopted a unit-specific emission standard 
based on the EGU’s best demonstrated historical performance, capped at the level of the standard for 
reconstructed fossil steam EGUs.  EPA did not adopt an additional 2 percent emission reduction from the 
EGU’s best demonstrated historical performance, as it had originally proposed, or provide for an 
additional emission limit for fossil steam EGUs that are modified after becoming subject to 111(d).     

For new stationary natural gas-fired combustion turbines, EPA adopted a uniform standard of 1,000 lb 
CO2/MWh for base load units based on the use of “efficient” NGCC, and added an emission standard for 
non-base load units at a level of 120 lb CO2/MMBtu based on the use of clean fuels (natural gas with a 
small allowance for distillate oil).  The final rule includes criteria for what constitutes a base load unit.   

Additionally, EPA adopted an emission standard for new multi-fuel fired combustion turbines (both base 
load and non-base load) of 120 to 160 lb CO2/MMBtu, depending on fuel characteristics.  EPA adopted 
the same standards for reconstructed combustion turbines as it did for new combustion turbines, and 
opted not to finalize any standards for modified combustion turbines, as it had proposed to do. 

Environmental Committee - II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan

14

http://www.vnf.com/1032
http://www.vnf.com/2951
http://www.epa.gov/airquality/cpp/cps-final-rule.pdf


 

 6 

Next Steps 
Effective Dates and Regulatory Obligations.  The final Clean Power Plan rule becomes effective 60 days 
after it is published in the Federal Register; however states need not submit plans before September 4, 
2016 and plans do not go into effect until 2022.  The final “Carbon Pollution Standards” rule applies to 
any facility that commenced construction after January 8, 2014, or modification or reconstruction after 
June 18, 2014, with requirements becoming effective 60 days after the rule is published in the Federal 
Register.   

Litigation.  Under the Clean Air Act, petitions for review of both the Clean Power Plan and the Carbon 
Pollution Standards rules must be filed at the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia 
Circuit within 60 days after the rules are published in the Federal Register.  The filing of a petition for 
reconsideration with EPA will most likely not impact the availability or timeline for litigation.  Litigation 
is expected to commence shortly after such publication, and, with regard to the Clean Power Plan, 
petitioners are expected to request that the D.C. Circuit stay the rule until litigation is resolved.  
Similarly, many interested parties are expected to file petitions with EPA for administrative 
reconsideration given the many major changes to the proposed rule that EPA has made to the final rule.   

Public Comments.  EPA is requesting comment on its proposed Federal Plan, (2) the proposed state plan 
model rules, and (3) a guidance document related to the evaluation, measurement & verification (EM&V) 
that must be conducted in order to utilize end-use energy efficiency in rate-based state compliance 
plans.  Public Comment must be received within 90 days of the publication of the proposed model rule in 
the Federal Register.   

For more information 
Van Ness Feldman will be preparing a comprehensive analysis of these rules that will be available on a 
cost-share basis. Our professionals are also available to provide counsel to companies and others as they 
assess the implications of the rule and prepare to submit comments to EPA. Please contact Kyle Danish, 
Stephen Fotis, or any other professionals in Van Ness Feldman’s Environmental Practice for additional 
information on the analysis or on other matters related to these rules. 

Follow us on Twitter @VanNessFeldman 

© 2015 Van Ness Feldman, LLP. All Rights Reserved. This document has been prepared by Van Ness Feldman for informational purposes only and is not a 
legal opinion, does not provide legal advice for any purpose, and neither creates nor constitutes evidence of an attorney-client relationship. 

Environmental Committee - II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan

15

http://www.vnf.com/kdanish
http://www.vnf.com/sfotis
http://www.vnf.com/environment
https://twitter.com/VanNessFeldman


Regional Water Supply Planning

JEA Board Environmental Committee 
8/10/15

Environmental Committee - II. B. State Water Planning

16



Purpose of Regional Water Supply Plans

2

ß Identify sustainable quantities of groundwater
ßDevelop strategies to meet projected demands
ßEnsure consistency between adjoining Districts

Projected 
Demand

Conservation 
and Reuse 
Potential

Net 
Demand

Net 
Demand

Water 
Available 

from 
Traditional 

Sources

Alternative 
Water 
Supply 

Projects 
Needed

Environmental Committee - II. B. State Water Planning

17



Regional Plan Development

3

ßRegional water supply 
plans in lieu of a single 
SJRWMD plan

ßRecognizes that areas 
have different issues 
and opportunities

ßStakeholder 
engagement at 
regional level

Environmental Committee - II. B. State Water Planning

18



JEA’s Water Supply Can Be Affected By Local 
and Regional Issues

4

ßManaging withdrawals on 
S. Grid to address water 
quality issues

ßMinimum Flows and Levels 
(MFLs  ) protect natural 
systems and can limit 
pumping in North Florida

ß JEA will participate 
proportionally with others 
on needed solutions

Itchetucknee Springs

Lower Santa Fe River
Keystone Heights 
Lakes

South Grid

Environmental Committee - II. B. State Water Planning

19



JEA Participating with North Florida Utility 
Group in Regional Plan Development

5

ß Ensuring accurate 
demand projections

ß Technical resources

ßProject Strategies and 
Options 

ß Equitable allocation of 
responsibility among 
all user classes

JEA

Atlantic
Neptune,

Jacksonville 
Beaches

St. Johns 
County

Orange Park

Clay County 
Utility Authority

GRU

Environmental Committee - II. B. State Water Planning

20



Water Supply Plan Outcomes

6

ß If properly developed, the interests of Utilities 
and Water Management Districts are aligned
ß Sustainability and availability  of water resources
ß Protection of the environment
ß Future development of alternative sources

ßHelp to focus State, Districts and Utilities on  
effective investments

Environmental Committee - II. B. State Water Planning

21



Schedule

7

ßCentral Florida Water Initiative (CFWI) Plan 
ß In draft and seeking public comment

ß Scheduled approval November 2015

ßNorth Florida Regional Plan
ß Awaiting development of modeling tools and 

demand projections before drafting

ß Scheduled completion in Fall 2016

Executive management changes at St. Johns and 
Suwannee River Water Management Districts

Environmental Committee - II. B. State Water Planning

22


	I. B. Agenda
	I. C. Minutes
	II. A. Update on Clean Power Plan
	II. B. State Water Planning

